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LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective examinations of
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings are as follows:

1/ 1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
\/ 2. Previous violation(s) closed.

3. The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified,

non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise
discretion, were satisfied.

Non-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the following requirement(s):

4. During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being

cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance
with 10 CFR 19.11.

(Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions

I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken,
date when full compliance will be achieved). | understand that no further written response to NRC wilt be required, unless specifically requested.
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|| Temporary Job Site Inspection

PROGRAM SCOPE

The licensee had 5 Authorized Nuclear Pharmacists (ANPs). The licensee served about 20 clients in mid-Missouri.
The licensee's activities were as authorized in accordance with its NRC license, including iodine-131 compounding and
use of beta-emitting radionuclides. The licensee dispensed about 200 dosages per day, including about 3 iodine-131
dosages per week. No iodine-131 compounding or handling of beta emitters was done during the inspection.
Performance Observations
The inspector: (1) observed staff don dosimeter badges and personal protective equipment as required; (2) observed
that the licensee implemented actions to prevent a previous non-cited violation of 10 CFR 20.1802 involving response
to a courier who did not have the key to the licensee's vestibule during delivery of licensed material (i.e., have the
courier call the on-call ANP, have the ANP direct the courier to wait for the ANP to arrive at the facility, and have the
ANP give the courier access to the vestibule for the delivery); (3) observed that licensed material was secured from
unauthorized access; (4) observed that the facility was as authorized; (4) observed licensee staff use time, distance,
shielding and other means to reduce personnel radiation exposure; (5) observed staff prepare packages for delivery,
including required package surveys, package labeling and marking, blocking and bracing, and use of shipping papers;
(6) noted that selected staff members knew how to respond to radioactive spills; (7) measured a maximum of 1 millirem
per hour at selected surfaces of the restricted area using a calibrated, NRC-owned survey instrument; (8) noted that
selected drivers knew how to respond to transportation accidents resulting in radiation hazards; (9) noted that selected
drivers knew how to deliver licensed material in accordance with DOT requirements; (10) observed that the licensee
used an adequate means to measure the radioactivity of samarium-153; (11) observed the RSO measure 100 feet per
minute at the face of the fume hood; (12) noted that a selected staff member knew when and how fume hood filters
were checked, what the action level was, and how to respond if the action level was exceeded; (13) observed an ANP
demonstrate how he had compounded iodine-131; (14) observed that the licensee had implemented actions to address
the licensee’s previous use of a non-conservative calibration factor of 1.33 to determine the 1-131 radioactivity on air
samples (e.g., revised the applicable calculation to apply a calibration factor of 1.0 instead of 1.33, multiplied the
previous air sampling result data times 1.33 for 2012, 2013, and 2014 (to date), determined that the constraint on air
emissions referenced in 10 CFR 20.1101(d) was not exceeded); and (15) noted that dosimetry results showed that the
highest annual whole body and extremity doses received from 2012 through May 2014 were 1241 millirem and 13,134
millirem, respectively. ’
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